
 

 
 
 

 
Wednesday, 14 June 2023 

 
TO: COUNCILLORS 
 

G OWEN, A FOWLER, M ANDERSON, A BLUNDELL, 
A FENNELL, P HOGAN, J HOWARD, S PATEL, E POPE AND 
J WITTER 
 

 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER - 52 
DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK, L39 2DF on THURSDAY, 22 JUNE 2023 at 7.00 PM at 
which your attendance is requested. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey 
Chief Operating Officer 
 

AGENDA 
(Open to the Public) 

 
 
1.   APOLOGIES   

 
 

2.   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  
To be apprised of any changes to the membership of the Committee in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4.  
 

 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS, IF ANY INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIRMAN  
Note: No other business is permitted unless, by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified at the meeting, the Chairman 
is of the opinion that the item(s) should be considered as a matter of 

 

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey  
Chief Operating Officer 
 

52 Derby Street 
Ormskirk 
West Lancashire 
L39 2DF 
 



 

urgency. 
 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is 
advised to contact the Legal and Democratic Services Manager in 
advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist for 
use in considering their position on any particular item is included at 
the end of this agenda sheet.) 
 

35 - 36 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP  
Party Whips are not to be used by this Committee in respect of its 
functions concerning the determination of applications, approval of 
consents, the taking of enforcement action and the exercise of powers 
and duties with regard to highways, hedgerows, the preservation of 
trees and high hedge complaints. When considering any other matter 
which relates to a decision of the Cabinet or the performance of any 
member of the Cabinet, in accordance with Regulatory Committee 
Procedure 9, Members must declare the existence of any party whip, 
and the nature of it. 
 

 

6.   MINUTES  
To receive as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on the  
25 May 2023.                                         .  
 

37 - 38 

7.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  
To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Place and 
Community.  
 

 

7a 2023/0031/FUL -  THE ROYAL BRITISH LEGION, LORD STREET, 
BURSCOUGH, LANCASHIRE  
To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Place and 
Community.  
 

39 - 50 

 
We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille 
and in other languages.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE: Please see attached sheet. 
MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings. 
 
For further information, please contact:- 
Jill Ryan on 01695 585017 
Or email jill.ryan@westlancs.gov.uk 



 

FIRE EVACUATION PROCEDURE FOR: 
COUNCIL MEETINGS WHERE OFFICERS ARE PRESENT  

(52 DERBY STREET, ORMSKIRK) 
 

PERSON IN CHARGE:  Most Senior Officer Present 
ZONE WARDEN:   Member Services Officer / Lawyer 
DOOR WARDEN(S)  Usher / Caretaker 

 
IF YOU DISCOVER A FIRE 

 
1.  Operate the nearest FIRE CALL POINT by breaking the glass. 
2.  Attack the fire with the extinguishers provided only if you have been trained and it is 

safe to do so. Do not take risks. 
 

ON HEARING THE FIRE ALARM 
 

1.  Leave the building via the NEAREST SAFE EXIT. Do not stop to collect personal 
belongings. 

2.  Proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT on the car park and report your presence to the 
PERSON IN CHARGE. 

3.  Do NOT return to the premises until authorised to do so by the PERSON IN 
CHARGE. 

 
NOTES: 
Officers are required to direct all visitors regarding these procedures i.e. exit routes and 
place of assembly. 
The only persons not required to report to the Assembly Point are the Door Wardens. 
 

CHECKLIST FOR PERSON IN CHARGE 
 

1.  Advise other interested parties present that you are the person in charge in the event 
of an evacuation. 

2. Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire escape routes and informed any 
interested parties of the escape routes. 

3.  Make yourself familiar with the location of the assembly point and informed any 
interested parties of that location. 

4.  Make yourself familiar with the location of the fire alarm and detection control panel. 
5.  Ensure that the zone warden and door wardens are aware of their roles and 

responsibilities. 
6.  Arrange for a register of attendance to be completed (if considered appropriate / 

practicable). 
 

IN THE EVENT OF A FIRE, OR THE FIRE ALARM BEING SOUNDED 
 

1.  Ensure that the room in which the meeting is being held is cleared of all persons. 
2.  Evacuate via the nearest safe Fire Exit and proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT in the 

car park. 
3.  Delegate a person at the ASSEMBLY POINT who will proceed to HOME CARE LINK 

in order to ensure that a back-up call is made to the FIRE BRIGADE. 
4.  Delegate another person to ensure that DOOR WARDENS have been posted outside 

the relevant Fire Exit Doors. 



 

5.  Ensure that the ZONE WARDEN has reported to you on the results of his checks, i.e. 
that the rooms in use have been cleared of all persons. 

6.  If an Attendance Register has been taken, take a ROLL CALL. 
7.  Report the results of these checks to the Fire and Rescue Service on arrival and 

inform them of the location of the FIRE ALARM CONTROL PANEL. 
8.  Authorise return to the building only when it is cleared to do so by the FIRE AND 

RESCUE SERVICE OFFICER IN CHARGE. Inform the DOOR WARDENS to allow 
re-entry to the building. 

 
NOTE: 
The Fire Alarm system will automatically call the Fire Brigade. The purpose of the 999 
back-up call is to meet a requirement of the Fire Precautions Act to supplement the 
automatic call. 
 

CHECKLIST FOR ZONE WARDEN 
 

1.  Carry out a physical check of the rooms being used for the meeting, including 
adjacent toilets, kitchen. 

2.  Ensure that ALL PERSONS, both officers and members of the public are made 
aware of the FIRE ALERT. 

3.  Ensure that ALL PERSONS evacuate IMMEDIATELY, in accordance with the FIRE 
EVACUATION PROCEDURE. 

4.  Proceed to the ASSEMBLY POINT and report to the PERSON IN CHARGE that the 
rooms within your control have been cleared. 

5.  Assist the PERSON IN CHARGE to discharge their duties. 
 
It is desirable that the ZONE WARDEN should be an OFFICER who is normally based in 
this building and is familiar with the layout of the rooms to be checked. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR DOOR WARDENS 
 

1.  Stand outside the FIRE EXIT DOOR(S) 
2.  Keep the FIRE EXIT DOOR SHUT. 
3.  Ensure that NO PERSON, whether staff or public enters the building until YOU are 

told by the PERSON IN CHARGE that it is safe to do so. 
4.  If anyone attempts to enter the premises, report this to the PERSON IN CHARGE. 
5.  Do not leave the door UNATTENDED. 
 
 



MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012 

A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to 
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register. 
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and 
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent. 
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an 
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information. 

Please tick relevant boxes         Notes 

 General    

1. I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.  You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 below 

2. I have a non-pecuniary interest.  You may speak and vote 

3. I have a pecuniary interest because 

it affects my financial position or the financial position of a 
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii) 
and the interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the 
public interest 

or 

it relates to the determining of any approval consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a 
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii) 
and the interest is one which a member of the public with 
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as 
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the 
public interest 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 or 6 below 

 

 

 

You cannot speak or vote and must 
withdraw unless you have also 
ticked 5 or 6 below 

4. 

 

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation 
20/09/16) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the 
functions of my Council in respect of: 

  

(i) Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those 
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease. 

 You may speak and vote 

(ii) school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses 
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time 
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does 
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends. 

 

 

 

You may speak and vote 

(iii) Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt 
of such pay.  

 You may speak and vote 

(iv) An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members  You may speak and vote 

(v) Any ceremonial honour given to Members  You may speak and vote 

(vi) Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992  You may speak and vote 

5. A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines 
in the budget – Dispensation 15/09/20 – 14/09/24) 

 See the terms of the dispensation 

6. I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend 
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence 
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the 
same purpose 

 You may speak but must leave the 
room once you have finished and 
cannot vote 

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your 
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband 
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest. 

Interest Prescribed description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant 
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of 
M. Page 35

Agenda Item 4



 This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority— 

 (a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 

 (b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority. 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)— 

 (a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

 (b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

 (a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
relevant authority; and 

 (b) either— 

 (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of 
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body 

corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest; 

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society; 

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant 

person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority; 

“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member; 

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI; 

“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with 

whom M is living as if they were civil partners;  

 “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the 

meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited 

with a building society. 

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions: 
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and 

to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority; 
 (ii) Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c) 

one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of 
general control or management; 

 (iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right 
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income. 

10.2(2) A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well-
being or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a 
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the 
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision. 

‘a connected person’ means  
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or 
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a 

partner, or any company of which they are directors; 
(c) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 

exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or 
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii). 
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means 
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health 
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations 
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies. 
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must 
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest. 
NB  Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to 
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions. 

Page 36



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD: Thursday, 25 May 2023 
 Start: 7.00 p.m. 
 Finish: 7.25 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: 
 
 
Councillors:   G Owen (Chairman) 
    A Fowler (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors:   M Anderson  S Patel 

A Blundell  N Pryce-Roberts 
P Hogan  E Pope 
J Howard  J Witter 

     
Officers: Kate Jones – Planning Services Team Leader 

Judith Williams – Assistant Solicitor 
Jill Ryan – Principal Democratic Services Officer 
Debbie Walkley – Senior Planning Officer 
Emma Bailey – Senior Planning Officer 
Danielle Valenti – Planning Assistant Solicitor 
Hollie Griffiths – Planning Assistant Solicitor 
 

 

1   APOLOGIES  
 

 There were no apologies for absence received.  
 

2   MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE  
 

 In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, the Committee noted the termination 
of Councillor A Fennell and the appointment of Councillor N Pryce Roberts for this 
meeting only, thereby giving effect to the wishes of the Political Groups. 
 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS, IF ANY INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 There were no urgent items of business received.  
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 Councillor N Pryce Roberts declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to Planning 
Application 2022/0945/WL3 relating to 82-84 Tanfields, Skelmersdale as a Cabinet 
Member she held the position of Portfolio Holder for Housing.  
 
 

5   DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP  
 

 There were no Declarations of Party Whip.  
 

6   MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 20 April 2023                           
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD: Thursday, 25 May 2023 
 

 

 
7   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
 Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and 

Community as contained on pages 7 to 29 of the Book of Reports and on pages 31 
to 34 of the Late Information Report.  
 

8   2022/0945/WL3 - 82-84 TANFIELDS, SKELMERSDALE  
 

 The Corporate Director of Place and Community submitted  a report relating to 82-
84 Tanfields, Skelmersdale referenced 2022/0945/WL3. 
 
RESOLVED: That planning application 2022/0945/WL3 relating to  82-84 

Tanfields, Skelmersdale be approved subject to the conditions and 
reasons as set out on pages 11 to 14 of the Book of Reports.  

 
9   2022/0955/FUL - 9-11  MOOR STREET, ORMSKIRK  

 
 The Corporate Director of Place and Community submitted a report on planning 

application 2022/0955/FUL relating to 9-11 Moor Street, Ormskirk. 
 
RESOLVED: That planning application 2022/0955/FUL relating to 9-11 Moor 

Street, Ormskirk be approved subject to the conditions and 
reasons as set out on pages 26 to 27 of the Book of Reports and 
with an additional condition and reason as set out below:- 

 
 Additional Condition 
 

Prior to any part of the development hereby permitted taking place 
a Construction Management Plan (CMP) or Construction Method 
Statement (CMS) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The approved plan / statement shall 
provide: 

 
• 24 Hour emergency contact number.  
• Details of the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.  
• Details of loading, unloading and storage of plant and materials.  
• Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction.  
• Delivery and construction working hours.  
 
Reason:  
These details are required prior to the commencement of 
development in order to protect the amenity of neighbouring 
occupiers and to comply with the provisions of Policy GN3 in the 
adopted West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027 Development Plan 
Document 

 
…….……………………….. 

Chairman 

Page 38



 

 
 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE: 22ND JUNE 2023 
 

 

 
Report of: Corporate Director of Place & Community  
 
Contact for further information:  
 
Case Officer: Rachel Lightfoot (Extn.) (E-mail:Rachel.lightfoot@westlancs.gov.uk) 
 

 
SUBJECT:  PLANNING APPLICATION REF: 2023/0031/FUL 
 
PROPOSAL: Demolition of the existing RBL building and the erection of 6no, 
semi-detached dwellings. 
 
APPLICANT: The Royal British Legion 
 
ADDRESS: The Royal British Legion, Lord Street, Burscough 
 
REASON FOR CALL IN: Application has been called in by Cllr Burnside to 
consider the impact of the Neighbourhood Place which notes the sites as an 
'Opportunity Site'. The impact on infrastructure, particularly traffic and parking. 
 

 
Wards affected: Burscough East 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Planning Committee on an application which seeks to secure planning 

permission for the demolition of the existing former Royal British Legion building 
and erect 6no dwellings in the form of semi-detached units with associated car 
parking and private amenity.  

 
1.2 The site is noted as the Lord Street Opportunity Area. The site forms part of the 

defined Opportunity Area.  
 

1.3 It is considered that subject to planning conditions, the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of design, access, landscaping, layout and scale and will 
safeguard neighbourhood amenity. The proposed development is compliant with 
the NPPF and the Local plan in respect of drainage, highways, reuse of land and 
other relevant matters.  

 
2.0  RECOMMENDATION TO PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
2.1 To grant planning permission subject to conditions. 
 

 
3.0 THE SITE 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7a



 
3.1 The site is the former Royal British Legion on Lord Street, Burscough. It extends to 

approximately 0.1 hectares and currently has an area of parking for the Legion 
Building to the front of the site.  

 
3.2 To the north and east of the site are existing residential properties. These are two 

storey in nature. A three storey apartment building lies to the south of the site and 
to immediate west the Lathom and Burscough Old People's Club. The lease of the 
Legion was surrendered in June 2022 and the building has been vacant since this 
time.  

 
4.0 PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The proposed development is for the demolition of the existing single storey 

building and the construction of 6 semi detached dwellings with parking set to the 
front of each dwelling (i.e. from Lord Street). All dwellings will benefit from private 
rear garden space.  

 
4.2 The dwellings have been positioned to follow the curve of the road. Materials are to 

be considered via a planning condition.  
 
5.0 PREVIOUS RELEVANT DECISIONS 
 
5.1 1992/1144 – Single storey extension at side to provide storage room. GRANTED 

(22.12.92) 
 
6.0 OBSERVATION OF CONSULTEES  
 
6.1 LCC Highways (09.03.23) – No objections subject to conditions 
 
6.2 Cadent Gas (02.03.23) – No objections 
 
6.3 Drainage Officer (05.04.23) – No objections subject to conditions 
 
7.0 OTHER REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 Burscough Parish Council (02.03.2023) – State that the planning application does 

not comply with Policy BPR2 – Lord Street Opportunity Area within the Burscough 
Parish Council Neighbourhood Plan.  

 
7.2 The Parish Council were reconsulted on further information which was received 

relating to the Neighbourhood Plan. No further response was received. 
 
7.3 In response to the public consultation exercised, 2 responses were received 

offering comments:  

 Potential for overlooking and overshadowing of properties opposite the site 

 Questioning whether a footpath link between Lord Street and the car park to the 
rear has been considered 

 
 
8.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
8.1 Planning Statement 
 Drainage Statement 
 Demolition plan 

Page 40



 Marketing Information 
 Ground Investigation 
 
9.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES   
 
9.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), National Planning Guidance 

(NPPG), the West Lancashire Local Plan (2012-2027) and the Burscough 
Neighbourhood Plan provide the policy framework against which the development 
will be assessed.  

 
9.2 The site is not allocated but is referred to as 'Lord Street Opportunity Area'.  
 
9.3 Relevant West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027 policies: 
 SP1 – A Sustainable Development Framework for West Lancashire 
 GN1 – Settlement Boundaries 
 GN3 – Criteria for Sustainable Development 
 GN4 – Demonstrating Viability 
 RS1 – Residential Development 
 IF2 – Enhancing Sustainable Transport Choice 
 
9.4 Relevant Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan policies:  
 BP12 – Surface Water Drainage 
 BP13 – Foul Water Drainage 
 BPH1 – New Residential Development 
 BPC1 – Community Infrastructure 
 BPD1 – Design and Accessibility Principles 
 BPR2 – Lord Street Opportunity Area 
 
9.5 Supplementary Planning Documents: 
 Design Guide (Jan 2008) 

 
10.0 OBSERVATIONS OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF PLACE AND COMMUNITY 
 
10.1 The main considerations for this application are: 
 

 Principle of development 

 Layout, Design and Appearance 

 Impact on Residential Amenity 

 Access, Traffic and Highways 

 Drainage 
 

Principle of Development 
 
10.2 This piece of land is covered by Policy BPR2 of the Burscough Neighbourhood 

Plan. This policy notes that a mixture of residential care, extra care housing and 
community centre will be supported providing it meets a number of criteria. This 
policy encourages community uses but does not preclude other uses coming 
forward.  

 
 
 Community Facility 
 
10.3 The site is noted within the Burscough Neighbourhood Parish Plan as a community 

facility (appendix 6.3). The Applicant's Agent contests that the Legion cannot be 
considered as a community facility as it is a private members club (and therefore 

Page 41



not available for use by the local community unless a member), it is also not an 
Asset of Community Value (AVC). However, a private members club can be 
considered an ACV if there has been significant use by non -members. In this case, 
there is no evidence provided that this is the case, no application for consideration 
of the Legion as a AVC has been made.  

 
10.4 In any case, in order to fully explore the potential of the future of the Legion as a 

future concern, discussions have been undertaken to establish marketing which 
has been carried out in order to find a new operator. Following the pandemic, it is 
advised that customer numbers fell and the business was suffering from losses on 
a weekly basis. Discussions and marketing were undertaken from September 2021 
and included discussions with other licensed trade operators without an operator 
being secured. Amended marketing details went live on Rightmove and via a public 
notice in the Liverpool Echo. This also failed to result in any persons willing to carry 
the building on as a club.  

 
10.5 Local Plan Policy GN4 (Demonstrating Viability), notes that the Council "will seek to 

retain existing commercial/industrial (B1, B2 or B8 uses) and retail (former use 
class A1) unless there has been a marketing exercise for 12 months in the case of 
Class B uses and 6 months in the case of Class A uses. There is no requirement 
for marketing in the case of a private members club which is considered Sui 
Generis (i.e. in a use of its own) which is the case where a members fee has to be 
paid. 

 
10.6 Policy GN4 is supported by Policy IF3 which states that community facilities such 

as pubs, post offices, community centres (not considered an exhaustive list) will be 
resisted unless the facility is no longer needed or can be relocated elsewhere.  

 
10.6 Policy BPC1 of the Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan states that the loss of 

important and valued social and community facilities will be resisted unless it can 
be demonstrated that the continued use of the premises has been marketed for at 
least 12 months. In this case, the applicant's have actively been trying to secure 
new users of the building since September 2021 without success. It is considered 
that this complies with the Neighbourhood Plan in this regard.  

 
10.7 It is considered the marketing exercise which has been carried out over a 19 month 

period in total demonstrates that the former Royal British Legion building is not a 
viable premise. This is in accordance with Policy GN4 of the West Lancashire Local 
Plan 2012-2027 and Policy BPC1 of the Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan.  

 
10.8 In regards to Policy BPR2, this policy is not an allocation but an opportunity for a 

care use. There have been no such enquiries made to the applicants for such a use 
and Planning Committee recently resolved to grant a retirement living village on 
land to the south of Chancel Way in Burscough ref. 2022/0642/FUL. This 
application for a significant sheltered housing development noted that there is 
currently no demand registered seeking extra care housing in Burscough, with the 
Council's Housing Strategy Manager confirming that the Burscough/Ormskirk need 
is satisfied by the Brookside scheme and that current need is registered in the 
Skelmersdale area. Policy BPR2 is a policy which indicates that there will be 
support for a care use. It does not preclude other uses and does not require that 
other uses demonstrate that the land is not necessary for care provisions. 
Notwithstanding that point, the application site is only part of the wider opportunity 
site for redevelopment under the Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan. As such, 
the redevelopment of this area is not considered to impede the redevelopment of 
the remaining land focused under Policy BPR2.   

Page 42



 
10.9 Consideration is required to be given to the replacement of the use. The Royal 

British Legion is a private members club and as such is not a general use club, 
there is therefore no comparable use. The adjacent Old People's Club is unaffected 
by the development. The marketing exercise that has been carried out is 
considered to be sufficient to demonstrate that the use is not viable or of sufficient 
interest for any other user to carry out a similar private members club use. It is 
considered that this is in accordance with West Lancashire Local Plan Policy GN4 
and IF3 in this regard and Burscough Neighbourhood Plan Policy BPC1. 

 
 General Principle 
 
10.10 The site is located within the Key Service Centre of Burscough and within the 

settlement boundary. It is a previously developed site and in accordance with West 
Lancashire Local Plan Policy SP1 which encourages development to be focussed 
in Skelmersdale, Ormskirk and Burscough. In addition, West Lancashire Local Plan 
Policy RS1 states that residential development will be permitted on brownfeld sites 
subject to the proposals conforming with all other planning policy.  

 
10.11 It is considered therefore that, following the carrying out of the marketing exercise 

the re use of this vacant brownfield site is acceptable in principle.  
 
 Layout, Design and Appearance 
 
10.12 Policy GN3 of the West Lancashire Local Plan together with the Council's SPD 

Design Guide is relevant in assessing the design and external appearance of the 
development and state that new development should be of a scale, mass and built 
form which responds to the characteristics of the site and its surroundings. This is 
supported by BPD1 of the Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan in relation to 
design and accessibility.  

 
10.13 The application comprises of 6 semi-detached units fronting Lord Street. The 

buildings are set back from the road to allow frontage car parking. The dwellings 
accord with the Technical Housing Standards document published by the 
Government.  

 
10.14 It is considered that the proposed dwellings are of an appropriate scale given the 

local area is generally two storey in height. The design of the properties are 
considered to be acceptable and in keeping with the mixed character of the area. 
Details of the proposed materials will be agreed before works on the dwellings 
commence via the imposition of a condition.  

 
10.15 It is considered that the proposals meet with the requirements of West Lancashire 

Local Plan policy GN3 and Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan Policy BPD1. 
 

Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
10.16 Policy GN3 of the Local Plan states that development should 'retain or create 

reasonable levels of privacy, amenity and sufficient garden/outdoor spaces for 
occupiers of the neighbouring and proposed properties'. 

 
10.17 Comments have been received from a neighbour across the street in relation to 

potential overlooking and overshadowing. The proposed dwellings are between 
22.1m and 24.4m approximately from the opposing dwellings. This exceeds the 
usual separation distance of 21m. It is considered that this will not lead to any 

Page 43



demonstrable harm through overlooking or overshadowing and will preserve the 
amenity that these dwellings currently enjoy.  

 
10.18 The development is considered to satisfy the requirements of Policy GN3 of the 

West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027 in regards to neighbouring amenity.  
 
 Access, Traffic and Highways 
 
10.19 Lancashire County Council as Highway Authority is of the opinion that the 

demolition of the existing building and its replacement with 6no dwellings will not 
have a severe impact on highway safety or capacity. There is therefore no 
objection to the proposal in regards to highways.  

 
10.20 Subject to conditions, the proposed development is acceptable and would not lead 

to a detrimental impact on highway safety in accordance with Policy GN3 and IF2 
of the Local Plan.  

 
 Drainage 
 
10.21 West Lancashire Local Plan GN3 requires that acceptable drainage provision is 

made for developments. The Drainage Officer has been consulted and notes there 
is no objection to the proposed development subject to a condition requiring further 
drainage details. This condition has been appended to the decision.  

 
10.22 It is considered that an appropriate drainage strategy can be implemented in 

accordance with Policy GN3 of the West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027.  
  
 
11.0 CONCLUSION 
 
11.1 The development of new dwellings on a brownfield site is strongly supported by 

planning policy. Due to the presence of the Former Royal British Legion building, 
marketing has been undertaken to determine whether a new tenant or owner could 
be found. This has not been successful. The scheme is therefore considered to be 
acceptable in terms of principle, design, highway safety, impacts on surrounding 
uses and drainage. Subject to appropriate conditions it is considered that the 
proposals accord with relevant policies within the NPPF, the West Lancashire Local 
Plan 2012-2027 and the Burscough Parish Neighbourhood Plan.  

  
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:  
 
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

beginning with the date of this permission. 
  

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

  
2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

details shown on the following plans:  
  
 Site Location Plan Drawing number (90)001 
 Demolition Plan Drawing number (10)001 

Page 44



 Proposed Site Plan Drawing number (90)002 
 Proposed Site Plan Drawing number (90)003 
 Proposed Landscape Plan Drawing number (90)004 
 Proposed Ground Floor Drawing number (20)001 Rev A 
 Proposed First Floor Plan Drawing number (20)002 Rev A 
 Proposed Roof Plan Drawing number (20)003 Rev A 
 Proposed Elevations drawing number (20)201 
 Proposed Street Elevation Drawing number (20)301 
  

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of Policy GN3 of the adopted West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027.  

   
3. Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application no above ground 

construction works of any phase of development shall take place until samples and 
/ or full specification of materials to be used externally on the [buildings/ plots] to 
which they relate within that phase has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include the type, colour and 
texture of the materials.  

  
The development shall be carried out using only the agreed materials and method 
of construction. 

  
Reason:  To ensure that the external appearance of the building(s) is satisfactory 
and that the development therefore complies with the provisions of Policy GN3 in 
the West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027 Development Plan Document. 
 

4. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details shown on drawing number (90)004. The works shall be carried out 
before the respective dwelling is occupied or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority prior to any development 
commencing. Any trees/shrubs which are removed, die or become severely 
damaged or diseased within 5 years of their planting shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with trees/shrubs of similar size and species to those originally 
planted unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

  
Reason: To ensure that the site is satisfactorily landscaped having regard to the 
character of the area and the nature of the proposed development and to comply 
with Policy GN3 of the West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027.  

  
5. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition or site 

clearance, until a Construction Management Plan (CMP) or Construction 
Management Statement (CMS) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The approved plan / statement shall provide:  

 - 24 hour emergency contact number 
 - Details of the parking of visitors and site operatives and visitors 
 - Details of loading and unloading of plant and materials 
 - Measures to protect vulnerable road users (pedestrians and cyclists) 

- The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing where appropriate 

 - Wheel washing facilities 
- Measures to deal with dirt, debris, mud or loose material deposited on the 
highway as a result of construction 

 - Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
- Details of a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works 

Page 45



 - Delivery, demolition and construction working hours.  
  

The approved Construction Management Plan or Construction Method Statement 
shall be adhered to throughout the construction period for the development.  

  
Reason: In the interests of the safe operation of the adopted highway during the 
demolition and construction phases in support of Policy IF2 of the Adopted West 
Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027.  

  
6. Deliveries to the approved development shall only be accepted between the hours 

of 09:30 and 14:30 Monday -Friday.  
  

Reason: To avoid peak traffic on the surrounding highway network in the interests 
of highway safety and Policy IF2 of the West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027.  

  
7. The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the access drive for 

the first 5m from the highway is surfaced in bituminous or cement bound materials, 
or otherwise bound. 

  
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure that the development 
complies with the provisions of Policy GN3 and IF2 in the West Lancashire Local 
Plan 2012-2027 Development Plan Document.    

  
8. No building shall be occupied until the car parking areas have been surfaced or 

paved in accordance with the hard landscaping details on Drawing Number 
(90)004. The car parking areas shall thereafter be kept free of obstruction and 
available for the parking of cars at all times. 

  
Reason:  To ensure that adequate on site vehicle parking/manoeuvring facilities are 
provided in the interests of highway safety and amenity, and to comply with the 
provisions of Policy GN3 and IF2 in the West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-2027 
Development Plan Document. 
 

9. No development shall take place until a strategy for the separate foul and surface 
water drainage of the development is, including any necessary infiltration 
measures, attenuation measures and maintenance management proposals has 
been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. the surface water 
drainage strategy must take account of the relevant provisions of the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any 
subsequent replacement standards. The drainage scheme must be completed in 
accordance with the approved details. The MicroDrainage mdx file is required to aid 
the checking of design calculations.  

  
Reason: To ensure the site is properly drained in the interest of local amenity in 
support of Policies GN3 and IF3 in the adopted West Lancashire Local Plan 2012-
2027. 
 

10. Details of measures to prevent water discharging onto the public highway shall be 
provided as part of the drainage strategy prior to the commencement of 
development.  

  
Reason: In the interest of highway safety to prevent water from discharging onto 
the public highway in support of Policy GN3 of the Adopted West Lancashire Local 
Plan 2012-2027 

 

Page 46



 
13.0 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this report and, in 

particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder.  
 
14.0 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 There are no significant financial or resource implications arising from this report. 
 
15.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
15.1 The actions referred to in this report are covered by the scheme of delegation to 

officers and any necessary changes have been made in the relevant risk registers. 
 
16.0 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1  There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 
 

 
Background Documents 
 
In accordance with Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 the background 
papers used in the compilation of reports relating to planning applications are listed within 
the text of each report and are available for inspection in the Planning Division, except for 
such documents as contain exempt or confidential information defined in Schedule 12A of 
the Act. 
 
Equality Impact Assessment 
 
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees, 
elected members and / or stakeholders.  Therefore, no Equality Impact Assessment is 
required. 
 
Human Rights  
 
The relevant provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and the European Convention on 
Human Rights have been taken into account in the preparation of this report, particularly 
the implications arising from Article 8 (the right to respect for private and family life, home 
and correspondence) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (the right of peaceful enjoyment of 
possessions and protection of property). 
 
Appendices 
 
None. 
 
  

Page 47





© Crown Copyright. All Rights Reserved. 
Licence No. 100024309. West Lancashire Borough Council. 2019. 

2023/0031/FUL 
 
The Royal British Legion, Lord Street, Burscough L40 4BZ 
 

 

 

Page 49




	Agenda
	4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	6 MINUTES
	7a 2023/0031/FUL -  THE ROYAL BRITISH LEGION, LORD STREET, BURSCOUGH, LANCASHIRE
	2023.0031.FUL Former RBL, Burscough


